ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 29, 2016
3:33 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cathy G essel, Chair
Senator M a Costello, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi |

Senator Peter M cciche

Senator Bill Stoltze

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Senator Bert Stednman
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 170

"An Act authorizing the Departnment of Natural Resour ces,
di vi sion of geol ogical and geophysical surveys, to collect fees
for facilities, equipnent, products, and services; relating to
accounting for certain program receipts; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSSB 170( RES) QUT OF COW TTEE

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 137(FIN) AM

"An Act raising certain fees related to sport fishing, hunting,
and trapping; relating to the fish and gane fund; providing for
the repeal of the sport fishing surcharge and sport fishing
facility revenue bonds; replacing the pernmanent sport fishing,
hunting, or trapping identification card for certain residents
with an identification card valid for three years; relating to
hunting and fishing by proxy; relating to fish and gane
conservation decals; raising the age of eligibility for a sport
fishing, hunting, or trapping |license exenption for state
residents; raising the age at which a state resident is required
to obtain a license for sport fishing, hunting, or trapping; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE RES COWM TTEE -1- February 29, 2016



BILL: SB 170

SHORT TI TLE: DNR FEES FOR GEOLOG CAL SERVI CES

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 05/ 16
02/ 05/ 16
02/ 29/ 16

BILL: HB 137

(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) G ESSEL

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
RES, FIN
RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: HUNT/ FI SH TRAP: FEES; LI CENSES; EXEMPTI ONS

SPONSOR( s) :

03/ 06/ 15
03/ 06/ 15
03/ 20/ 15
03/ 20/ 15
03/ 20/ 15
03/ 25/ 15
03/ 25/ 15
03/ 25/ 15
03/ 27/ 15
03/ 27/ 15
03/ 27/ 15
03/ 27/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 10/ 15
04/ 10/ 15
04/ 10/ 15
04/ 13/ 15
04/ 13/ 15

04/ 13/ 15

04/ 13/ 15
04/ 13/ 15
04/ 13/ 15
04/ 15/ 15
04/ 15/ 15
04/ 15/ 15
04/ 15/ 15
04/ 16/ 15
04/ 16/ 15
04/ 16/ 15
04/ 16/ 15

SENATE RES COW TTEE

NN AN NN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN NN

LRLIITIIILIT T I IITIIIIIIZIZIZIZIZE

NN AN NN AN AN

QLYY

REPRESENTATI VE(s) TALERI CO

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

RES, FIN

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 6: 00 PM BARNES 124

Moved CSHB 137(RES) CQut of Committee
M NUTE( RES)

RES RPT CS(RES) NT 2DP 3NR 2AM

DP: OLSON, TALERI CO

NR: HERRON, JOSEPHSQON, JOHNSON

AM SEATON, TARR

FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 5DP 5NR

DP: PRUI TT, W LSON, GATTI S, MUNQZ,
THOVPSON

NR: SADDLER, GARA, GUTTENBERG EDGVON
NEUMAN

FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Moved CSHB 137(FIN) Qut of Committee
M NUTE( FI N)

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERS|I ON: CSHB 137(FIN) AM

RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Schedul ed but Not Heard

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

RES, FIN

RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Heard & Hel d

-2- February 29, 2016



04/ 16/ 15 (S) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 17/ 15 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
04/ 17/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard
02/ 29/ 16 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

AKIS d OLOPSCSs, Staff to Senator G essel and the Senate
Resources Committee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Descri bed SB 170.

STEVE MASTERMAN, State Geol ogi st and Director

Di vi sion of Ceol ogi cal and Geophysi cal Surveys

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed support for SB 170 and answered
guesti ons.

MARY NANUWAK, representing herself

Bet hel , Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expressed support for Native Al askan
subsi stence rights and protecting traditional |ands.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO, Sponsor

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 137.

JOSHUA BANKS, Staff to Representative Talerico
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Descri bed HB 137.

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane ( ADF&G

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 137 and answered
gquesti ons.

SAM COTTEN, Conmi ssi oner

Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&G

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed strong support for HB 137 and
answer ed questions.

BRUCE DALE, Director

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 29, 2016



Division of WIldlife Conservation

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 137.

CHARLES DERRI CK, President

Chitina Dipnetters Associ ation (CDA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Proposed a $15 fee to obtain a personal -use
Chitina dipnet permt to raise funds for road, garbage, and
toi |l et nmai ntenance.

NANCY HI LLSTRAND, representing herself

Kachemak Bay, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Proposed souvenir-quality permts for
wat ching or photographing wildlife and raising the qualifying
age of resident lifetime hunting/fishing |licenses to 65 years.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:33:51 PM

CHAIR CATHY GESSEL <called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:33 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Wel echowski, Costello, Coghill, M cciche,
and Chair G essel.

SB 170- DNR FEES FOR GEOLOG CAL SERVI CES

3:34:11 PM

CHAI R @ ESSEL announced consideration of SB 170 and noted that
the bill is designed to nmake the D vision of GCeological and
Geophysi cal Survey (DGGES), in the Departnent of Revenue (DNR),
nore self-sufficient, so it wll rely less on general funds. A
few years ago the legislature authorized DGGS to purchase a
Samis Cub building in East Anchorage. Ceological materials,
such as core sanples fromoil and nmineral exploration, had been
stored in Conex containers in Eagle R ver, and they were
| eaki ng, causing sanple degeneration. She stated that the
material was a library of information for future explorers. The
DGGS is not allowed to charge people to view the cores, which
could help support the facility and the staffing. She said other
states charge for this service, and SB 170 authorizes DGGS to
recei ve paynent from explorers who want to see the cores.

3:35:05 PM
SENATOR STOLTZE joined the commttee.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE -4- February 29, 2016



3:36: 28 PM

AKIS G ALOPSCS, Staff to Senator Gessel and the Senate
Resources Conmittee, Alaska State Legislature, explained that
Section 1 of SB 170 adds DGGS to [AS 37.05.146(c), a list of
program receipts to be accounted for separately]. Section 2
changes the requirenment that DGGEC fees and receipts go into the
general fund, he stated, and Section 3 is the heart of SB 170
allowng the DGES to institute fee structures for services,
equi pnent, and the use of DGGS facilities.

3:38:35 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about Section 2, which deletes the
requi renent that noney from selling reports and maps wll go

into the general fund.

MR. G ALOPSOS said that Section 3 will allow the division to
charge for equipnment and services and "was going to be now
accounted for in Section 1 of the bill, which is the receipt
authority." He added that Section 2 would renove the reason for
the fees being deposited into the general fund.

SENATOR M CCICHE asked if other departnents have simlar
aut hori zation to charge for services and keep the funds.

MR. G ALOPSCS answered that the authorization in SB 170 woul d be
the "88th version of receipt authority being designated in the
state's |edger book." The next wtness can <clarify which
divisions of DNR are striving for self-sufficiency by using
recei pt authority, he suggested.

3:40: 15 PM

STEVE MASTERMAN, State Ceologist and Director, D vision of
Ceol ogi cal and Geophysi cal Surveys, Departnent of Natura

Resources (DNR), Fairbanks, Alaska, said that the D vision of
M ning, Land, and Witer is transitioning from unrestricted
general funds to designated general funds. He noted that the
Division of Parks and Recreation is naking that transition as
well. The Dy vision of Forestry is funding a certification
program with industry receipts, and the Division of Agriculture
has increased fees by 20 percent to fund operations by
desi gnated general funds. He said it is a business nodel for DNR
to transition to revenues that are designated by its activities,

and SB 170 woul d be an extension of that nodel.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 29, 2016



CHAIR G ESSEL said spoke of Texas charging a fee for using a
geologic materials center, which she toured, and she asked what
ot her states do.

MR. MASTERMVAN said there are 28 core depositories in the United
States and Canada, and of the 10 depositories that are over
25,000 square feet in size, seven charge a fee. Alaska's GV
[geologic materials center] is 100,000 square feet, he added. O
the snmaller facilities, about half charge a fee.

3:43:36 PM
CHAIR G ESSEL noted a chart M. Msternman provi ded and asked how
fees are set.

MR. MASTERVAN answered that he is looking at fees from other
facilities. He noted that Al aska's [proposed fees] are in the
mddle or lower/mddle of the range. Industry has expressed
concern, "and so we are very cognhizant of not charging too mnuch
for these services." The facility should be successful but not
drive people away, he opined.

CHAI R G ESSEL asked how i ndustry uses the GWC.

MR. MASTERMAN explained that the inventory is online and
avai |l able. Every rock in the facility has a barcode, and all are
geographically referenced and can be searched by |ocation,
prospect, commodity type, or borehole nane. He said that the
drill sanples represent over 48 mllion feet of drilling. There
are over 330,000 surface sanples and about 200,000 "thin
sections" that have been donated to the state. To gather that
i nformati on now woul d take tens of billions of dollars, so it is
very val uabl e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about a letter dated on February 16
where M. Masterman said he would not charge for donations.

MR. MASTERMAN expl ained that there is no charge if people give
rocks to the division.

SENATOR W ELECHOWABKI asked if school groups will be charged.
MR. MASTERMAN said no. The division received noney from Wal mart
to support educational uses, and the university does use the

facility for core workshops.

3:48: 00 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI suggested putting such | anguage in statute.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 29, 2016



MR. MASTERMAN said that would be very appropriate. "W love to
have the kids cone out there.”

SENATOR STOLTZE said he grew up in the area and his elenentary
school took him there on field trips, "and | think I'm nuch
enriched as a result.”

SENATOR COSTELLO noted that |egislators thought the issue was
addressed |ast session. She had visited the old center, which
| ooked |ike something from Sanson and Sons. She took her boys on
atour, and it is quite an educational opportunity, she stated.

SENATOR M CCI CHE said he appreciates DNR covering its costs, but
he referred to resistance fromDNR on sinmlar efforts.

3:50: 46 PM

MARY NANUWAK, representing herself, Bethel, Al aska, said al
fees should be the sanme for everyone except nonresidents or
attorneys who wll gain from it. She spoke of hunting and
fishing fees for Native Al askans who rely on subsistence, and
then was remnded that the current discussion related to
geologic materials. M. Nanuwak noted that certain Native |ands
are not supposed to be occupied by state agencies, including
grave sites and subsi stence areas.

CHAIR GESSEL, finding no further coments, closed public
testi nony.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI suggested a conceptual anendnent to allow
school groups to use the GVC without a fee.

CHAI R G ESSEL suggested addi ng the | anguage to Section 3.

SENATOR COSTELLO suggested it include children who are not with
a formal school group, making it |ess preclusive.

SENATOR M CCICHE noted that the goal is to charge industry
groups for access to the core sanples.

MR. MASTERMAN agr eed.
SENATOR STOLTZE suggested giving DNR the discretion to waive

fees for educational purposes, in order that preschools and
uni versity prograns, for exanple, have free access.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE -7- February 29, 2016



CHAIR GESSEL proffered |anguage such that DNR pronul gate
regul ations to wai ve fees for educational opportunities.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI nobved conceptual amendrment [1], requiring
the departnment to waive GVC fees for educational opportunities.
There were no objections, and it was so ordered.

3:58: 08 PM

SENATOR COSTELLO noved to report SB 170, as anended, from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
notes. There being no objection, CSSB 170(RES) noved from the
Senat e Resources Standing Comm ttee.

At ease

HB 137- HUNT/ FI SH TRAP: FEES; LI CENSES; EXEMPTI ONS

3:59:45 PM
CHAI R G ESSEL announced consideration of HB 137. [CSHB 137(FIN)
am version 29-LS0625\S. A, was before the commttee.]

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO Al aska State Legislature, described HB

137. He said the bill raises license fees for fishing, trapping,
and conbination licenses "to help deal with the deficiency we
currently have." It provides for a small increase in fees to

residents and a nore significant increase to nonresidents. HB
137 also changes the qualifying threshold for Ilow incone
licenses to neet the nobst recent federal poverty guidelines.
Currently, lowinconme is set at a | evel of under $8,200 a year.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERICO stated that the bill allows for a
voluntary fish and gane conservation decal for those who don't
hunt or fish. He noted that the current surcharge on the fishing
license would continue after the hatchery bonds have been paid,
and that noney would be available to the Al aska Departnent of
Fish and Ganme (ADF&G . The bill also changes the eligibility age
for [free lifetine licenses] from 60 to 62 years, and it would
need to be renewed every three years to ensure that only those
who remain in the state qualify for that |icense. Additionally,
he said, HB 137 changes the age for a license from 16 to 18
years, and it allows residents to hunt or fish on behalf of a
person with a disability. He noted that it has been 17 years
since nonresident fees have been raised and over 24 years for
resident fees. This bill is to continue providing opportunities
for Al askans by giving the Departnent of Fish and Gane enough
noney, he st at ed.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 29, 2016



4:03:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TALERICO said he has been paying $48 for a
conbination |icense for many years. At current inflation, it
shoul d be valued at $124, but he does not suggest that the fee
follows inflation.

4:04: 35 PM

JOSHUA BANKS, Staff to Representative Talerico, Al aska State
Legi slature, said Section 1 of HB 137 repeals the authority to
use the fish and gane fund for fish hatchery bonds once the
bonds are paid off. Section 2 anends the qualifying ages for
special fishery openings. Section 3 raises the resident sport
fishing fee from $15 to $20 and the fee for blind residents from
$0.25 to $0.50. Section 4 elimnates the $9 surcharge on
resident fishing license fees once fish hatchery bonds are paid.

4. 06: 32 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked when hatchery bonds will be paid off.

MR. BANKS said he did not know Section 9 and 11 acconplish the
same thing as Section 3 for the resident conbination |icenses,
as do Sections 13 and 15 for nonresident |icenses. He noted that
Section 5 raises the resident hunting license from $25 to $30
and Section 6 raises the resident hunting and trapping
conbination |icense. The resident trapping license is raised in
Section 7, and Section 8 raises the resident hunting and fishing
conbi nation |icense from $39 to $45.

4:08: 06 PM
MR. BANKS said that Section 10 raises the resident hunting,
trapping, and fishing license fee and changes eligibility for

| ow incone purchasers. The bill elimnates |anguage that allow
residents who receive state or federal welfare to purchase a | ow
incone license unless they [are below] the federal poverty
| evel .

CHAI R G ESEL asked for the current poverty guidelines.

MR. BANKS said it depends famly size. He said Sections 11 and
13 add the $9 surcharge to certain l|icenses. Sections 14, 16,
and 17 raises nonresident | i censes. Section 18 raises
nonr esi dent bi g gane tags.

4:11:18 PM

MR. BANKS explained that Section 19 raises the waterfow
conservation tag from $5 to $10 and nekes conform ng anendnents
regarding age eligibility. He said Section 20 rai ses nonresident

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 29, 2016



small game hunting fees, Sections 21 and 22 raise nonresident
alien license fees and tags, and Section 23 raises the resident
king sal non tag, as well as nmaking conform ng anendnents.

4:13: 31 PM
MR. BANKS said Section 24 raises the nonresident king salnon
tags, and Section 25 creates the fish and gane conservation

decal. Section 26 increases the age at which a Ilicense is
required, from 16 years to 18 years, and requires a resident to
be 62 years or older before qualifying for a permanent |icense,

and requires renewal every three years. Sections 27 through 31
are conform ng anendnents. He added that Section 32 repeals all
sections related fish hatchery bonds and the sport fishing
surcharge, and Section 33 allows residents who are currently
eligible and receiving the pernmanent license to remain eligible.
Section 34 created codified |anguage conformng to the ful
repaynent of the hatchery bonds. Section 35 is applicability
| anguage related to the comm ssioner of Al aska Departnment of
Fish and Gane and the Revisor of Statutes. Section 37 contains
the applicable effective dates for the prior sections.

4:17: 27 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked about changing the effective date.

MR. BANKS suggested changing it from January 1, 2016 to January
1, 2017.

SENATOR STOLTZE asked if paying off the debt service wll be
irrelevant to a person paying for the license. He asked for
confirmation if the Jlanguage wll effectively keep the $9
hat chery bond surcharge even after the bond has been fully paid.
REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO sai d yes.

SENATOR STOLTZE noted that it is only relevant to the
departnment, which can use the surcharge elsewhere. He asked if
"blind" is the correct term nology, and how it is defined.

MR. BANKS said he did not know

CHAIR G ESSEL noted that this is existing |anguage and suggested
aski ng the departnent.

SENATOR STOLTZE surm sed the termmay be "visually-inpaired.”

4:19:53 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- February 29, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there are benefits to a person
buyi ng a conservati on decal.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO said the benefit is supporting wildlife
conservation

SENATOR STOLTZE asked about the Carlson decision [Carlson v.
State] and its ramfications.

MR. BANKS said he provided a |egal opinion to the nenbers (tab 9
in the binder). He explained that the Carlson cases dealt wth
unequal fees charged for commercial fishing [on nonresidents],
raising the issue of license fee inequality anobng Anmerican
citizens who are residents of different states. The | egal
opinion points to a case in Mntana where the US Suprene Court
al l oned nonresident sport hunters and fishers to be charged over
25 times nore than residents.

SENATOR STOLTZE said he does not know the paraneters, "so we'd
be into sonme new ground."

CHAIR G ESSEL opined that |legislative attorneys often give
uncertain answers to | egal questions.

SENATOR STOLTZE said that they tell legislators to figure it
out .

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he appreciates getting the 1|ega
opi nion, which does state that the U S. Suprene Court upheld
sport hunting fees for elk that were nore than 25 tines the fee
for a resident. Additionally, the opinion explains that states
can charge nonresidents so high as to discourage them from the
activity. He noted that his constituents are concerned about the
i ncredi ble nonresident pressure on the fishing resources in
Kenai and "up north" to the Matanuska Valley, and he has heard
nmention of a $10 tag for nonresidents.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO said he has been approached by a |ot of
constituents saying that, at the very |east, nonresidents are
not contributing enough. There are others who believe that
nonresi dents should not even "be allowed to wet a line." Then
there is the business comunity that recognizes the economc
i mpact of nonresidents and striking a bal ance.

4:24:49 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- February 29, 2016



SENATOR STOLTZE stated that he thought fees on black bears could
be | owered or wai ved, because he sees the bears as infestations
in sone areas.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERICO said he does not live in black bear
country, but he would be open to suggestions from the Departnent
of Fish and Gane.

4:26: 47 PM
CHAIR G ESSEL invited witnesses to speak.

4:27:09 PM

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Al aska Department of Fish and
Gane (ADF&G, said that ADF&G would benefit from HB 137. The
department appreciates the sponsor for introducing the bill. It
has been about 25 years since fees have been increased, and the
departnment has prograns where the noney coul d be used.

4:28:50 PM
SAM COTTEN, Comm ssioner, Alaska Departnent of Fish and Gane,
expressed strong support for HB 137. Meeting constitutional and

statutory obligations will be greatly enhanced with its passage,
he stated. The Division of WIldlife will be able to support
i nt ensi ve managenent prograns, because capital inprovenent funds
will be exhausted at sone point. There are gaps in gane
managenment survey and inventory efforts, including population
estimtes for noose, bears, wolves, caribou, and others. Many
areas and many species lack in surveys, and HB 137 w |l enhance

t hose efforts.

4:31:42 PM

COM SSIONER COTTEN said state managenent authority has been
eroded by the National Park Service and US Fish and WIldlife
Service. Money wll help ADF&G work with the Departnent of Law
[to address those issues]. Another area of underfunding is the
84 advisory commttees, which is the primary opportunity for
public participation in the nmanagenent system GCeneral funds of
$8 mllion are always at risk, although he does not want to just
repl ace the general funds wth fish and gane funds. He noted
that there are a lot of federal dollars, Pittman-Robertson
funds, which nmay go unclainmed if the departnment cannot match
them He spoke of a need for funds for fish assessnents and
enhancenents. |nvasive species, such as the northern pike, are
wr eaki ng havoc on native species, especially salnon stocks, so
funding those prograns will be very inportant, as wll funding
for stream habitat rehabilitation.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- February 29, 2016



4:35: 05 PM

SENATOR STOLTZE asked if the departnment would waive fees for
hunting black bears in sone areas where the species 1is
over popul at ed.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN thanked Senator Stoltze for his vote of
confidence on the bear managenent issues, and said it is |ogica
and nore cost efficient and effective nethod to waive hunting
fees where there are efforts to get rid of predators.

4:36:17 PM

BRUCE DALE, Director, Division of WIldlife Conservation, Al aska
Departnment of Fish and Gane, said the Board of Gane has
authority to waive bear tag fees and in fact does that when it
wants to increase bear hunting.

SENATOR STOLTZE asked the cost of relocating a black bear from
Government Hill to "where they're now wanderi ng around."

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN said there was one bear that got away but is
unlikely to be alive. He said he does not know the cost.

MR. BROOKS referred to sone earlier questions and said that the
state bond manager would say [the fish hatchery bonds] wll be
paid off in 2023. They have been paid at an advanced rate, and
"we've done sone early payoff of the debt," so the bonds m ght
be paid by 2021, he added. Every year, the departnment issues
about 19,000 poverty-level licenses for $5, he noted. A person
who earns less than $8,200 or anyone who has received public
assistance of any kind is eligible, and nost people who get the
license qualify based on receiving public assistance. The
current federal poverty level for a famly of four is $30, 000.
There is no process to require verification. As a conparison,
there currently are 1,000 license vendors around the state, and
t he agency does not check tax returns "or anything.” He said he
wi Il check on the use of the term"blind."

4:39:23 PM

SENATOR M CClI CHE asked why resident gane tags are not being
i ncreased.

MR. BROOKS said the departnent was not involved in setting new
fees. Several sporting groups gave input, he noted.

CHAIR G ESSEL asked if there are licenses in the bill that are
no | onger i ssued.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- February 29, 2016



MR. BROOKS said he can provide a table of licenses sold. He told
the commttee that the Carlson court case, and the differentia
bet ween resident and nonresident usage, dealt with interstate
commerce and does not apply to recreational licenses. Already a
nonresi dent pays $100 for a license and a resident only pays
$15, and nonresidents pay for tags to take big ganme, and
residents generally pay nothing.

4:41:53 PM
SENATOR STOLTZE asked how many wol verines are taken annually.

MR. DALE said he does not have the nunber, but he will find
them Buying tags is different than actually taking a wol verine.
Many nonresidents buy tags and would like that rare opportunity.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how Al aska's fees conpare to those in
ot her states.

MR. BROOKS said Alaska licenses are |low conpared to other
western states. "It's a pretty darn good deal.”" He has a
conpari son chart that he can provide to the commttee.

SENATOR STOLTZE asked if there was an "anal ysis of opportunity.”
He said deer are practically infestations in a lot of places,
and has heard that a mllion and a half deer hunters show up on
opening day in rural Pennsylvania. "Your chances for a deer in
the lower-48 is certainly higher than the average person has for
a noose or a brown bear or a Dall sheep." He added that the big
trophy value is subjective, but the average person does not get
t he big trophy.

4:44: 42 PM
MR. BROOKS said he has listened to different sport hunter
groups, and they have anal yzed tag fees versus opportunities.

MR. DALE expl ai ned that conparisons are made with western states
and Canada wth simlar species. But regarding species Ilike
deer, many nonresidents do not see them as just deer, but they
see them as Sitka black-tailed deer, and they cone to Alaska to
hunt them He stated that the fees appear to be reasonabl e.

SENATOR STOLTZE said M. Dale's response was subjective, and he
does not think there is much evidence that the fees are
r easonabl e.

SENATOR M CCI CHE asked about the legality of sockeye sal non tags
for nonresidents only.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- February 29, 2016



MR. BROOKS stated that there are fees for big game tags for
nonresi dents but not residents, but he can ask the Departnent of
Law.

4:47:50 PM

SENATOR M CCI CHE poi nted out the docunment from Legislative Legal
stating in the Kenp case that North Dakota could exclude all
nonresident hunters of mgratory waterfow when it was necessary
to protect waterfow from over hunting. He surm sed that fish
and gane can be managed by not allow ng nonresident users in
sone cases.

SENATOR STOLTZE said econom c studies show that there is value
in king salnon. He suggested charging a conservation fee for
accidentally gillnetted King salnon that could go to the Sport
Fi sh Divi sion.

4:49: 22 PM
MR. BROOKS said there have been discussions on taxing bycatch,
but king salnmon are caught legally by conmercial fisheries.

COM SSIONER COTTEN said bycatch includes wunintended and
sonetimes prohibited species, but a king salnmon caught in a
gillnet intended for other salnon is legal. To charge for those
fish would involve the Board of Fish and would be a |Iegal
guestion. Managenent tries to keep the nunber of gill-net caught
ki ng sal non very | ow.

SENATOR STOLTZE said sone people try to do their best, but sone
consider [catching king salnon] as part of their plan. The
economc value of the king salnon entering the river 1is
"thousands of dollars" nore, he stated.

COWMWM SSI ONER COTTEN said the current nanagenent plan on the
Kenai is very strict on ensuring a projected return before
additional effort is allowed by the set net fisheries. He
believes that Senator Stoltze is asking a |legal question that he
i s unconfortabl e answeri ng.

SENATOR STOLTZE noted that he woul d never ask a noral question.
SENATOR M CCICHE said he is very interested in taxing bycatch.
This bill my not be the place for it, but he would like to

create di si ncentives for cat chi ng nont ar get ed speci es,
particularly in offshore fisheries, which inpacts all of us.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- February 29, 2016



4:53: 36 PM

CHARLES DERRI CK, Pr esi dent, Chitina Dipnetters Association
(CDA), Fairbanks, Alaska, said the CDA proposes a $15 fee to
obtain a personal-use Chitina dipnet permt to raise funds for
road, garbage, and toilet maintenance. About 10,000 permts are
i ssued each year for the fishery, which is mnmanaged by ADF&G
separate from other personal-use fisheries. The association is
not advocating for a fee on all personal-use fisheries, but it
has been seeking state funds to clear |andslides on sections of
the state-owned Copper R ver highway right-of-way between
OBrien Creek and Hailey Creek. This is the main ground access

to the fishery, and it is Ilimted to all-terrain vehicles.
Several vehicles have tunbled into the river [because of the
| andsl i de debri s]. Prior to 2002, t he Depar t ment of

Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT) routinely cleared
these hazards, and with funding, the departnent is willing to
continue, he explained. He added that DOTI has also borne the
expense of contracting garbage and toilet naintenance in the
area. Considering Alaska's financial difficulties, he said, the
association is trying to be proactive in ensuring adequate
facilities and mai ntenance by requesting the $15 fee.

CHAIR G ESSEL | auded the idea and said her husband is a Chitina
di pnetter.

4:57: 04 PM

NANCY HI LLSTRAND, representing herself, Kachenmak Bay, Al aska,
said she supports "the enblem idea," and she suggested a $5
entry-level license for wildlife observers. People will get used
to the idea that if they conme to watch wildlife, they should pay
for it. She suggested a $20 license for commercial photographers
and guides, because they benefit economcally from Al aska's
wildlife. There are 900,000 cruise ship passengers that visit
Al aska each year, and with a $5 fee for each person, "we could
make close to $5 mllion." Local artists are willing to donate
their art for the license, and it wll be a souvenir. The
license would be purchased online and printed by purchasers, so
there would be no cost to ADF&G She added that she supports
raising prices for hunters, and she believes that the fee
exenption should start at 65 years of age, not 62. These people
have the noney, and nobst would want to contribute to ADF&G s
efforts, she opined.

CHAIR G ESSEL asked Ms. Hillstrand to send her suggestions in
witing. She noted the time and apologized to 11 other people
who signed up to testify and told them that the conmttee wll
hear the bill again in about tw weeks.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- February 29, 2016



[HB 137 was held in conmttee.]

5:00: 46 PM
There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,

Chair G essel adjourned the neeting at 5:00 p.m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- February 29, 2016



